BYLAWS FOR UNITS NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF COLORED PEOPLE

TABLE OF CONTENTS*

Page

ARTICLE VI	I DUTIES OF OFFICERS OF UNITS	2
1.	(President)	2
2.	(Vice President)	
3.	(Secretary)	
4.	(Treasurer)	4
5.	(Assistant Secretary)	5
6.	(Assistant Treasurer)	
7.	(Executive Director)	5
ARTICLE VI	II COMMITTEES OF UNITS	7
1.	(Executive Committee)	
2.	(Duties of the Executive Committee)	8
2. 3.	(Duties of the Executive Committee)	
2. 3. 4.	(Duties of the Executive Committee) (Quorum) (Standing Committees and Special Committees of Units)	
2. 3. 4. 5.	(Duties of the Executive Committee)	
2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	 (Duties of the Executive Committee)	
2. 3. 4. 5.	(Duties of the Executive Committee)	
2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	 (Duties of the Executive Committee)	
2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.	 (Duties of the Executive Committee)	

* NOTE: The above Article VII (*Duties of Officers of Unit*) and Article VIII (*Committees of Units*) is an excerpt from the January 2014 printing of **ByLaws for Units**, NAACP, Revised February 2014 and can be found therein on pages 32 – 54. See NAACP.org to view the entire **ByLaws for Units** publication of Articles I – XIV.

ARTICLE VII DUTIES OF OFFICERS OF UNITS

1. (President)

The duties of the President shall be:

- a. To preside at meetings of the NAACP Unit and act as Chair of the Executive Committee.
- b. To appoint the Chair and members of all Committees not otherwise elected by the General Membership or the Executive Committee of the NAACP Unit; except the Chair of the Youth Work Committee of a Branch or State/State Area Conference.
- c. Between meetings of the Executive Committee and the NAACP Unit, to exercise general executive authority on behalf of the NAACP Unit, subject to ratification by the Executive Committee.
- d. To countersign all checks and properly supported requisitions for disbursements from the NAACP Unit Treasury.
- e. To perform such other functions and exercise such further duties as may be voted from time to time by the NAACP Unit or the Executive Committee.
- f. To be an ex-officio member of all committees except, in the case of State/State-Area Conferences, Branches and Prison Branches, the Nominating Committee and Election Supervisory Committee, and in the case of the State Youth and College Division, the Youth Nominating Committee.
- g. To encourage and assist all Committees in the development of their programs and the performance of their duties.
- h. To recommend, to the Executive Committee, the removal of any Chairperson of a Standing or Special Committees.
- i. *Additional Duties for Prison Branch Presidents*. In addition to the previous duties, Prison Branch Presidents shall perform the duties through the appropriate procedures applicable to their respective prison or correctional facility.
- j. *Additional Duties for Youth Council Presidents*. In addition to the previous duties, Youth Unit Presidents shall represent the Youth Unit on the Executive Committee of the Branch.

2. (Vice President)

The duties of the Vice President shall be:

- a. To perform all the duties of the President in his/her absence or disability. In case of more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents shall be designated as first, second, third and so forth and shall perform their duties according to their numerical rank.
- b. In the event of the resignation, removal or death of the President, the Vice President(s) shall automatically ascend to the position of President, according to their numerical rank, for the remainder of the term of the presidency. Any other Vice President(s) shall ascend in the same manner.

3. (Secretary)

The duties of the Secretary shall be:

- a. To act as Secretary of the NAACP Unit and the Executive Committee; to give members notice of regular meetings and three (3) calendar days notice of special meetings of the NAACP Unit and Executive Committee; to keep full and accurate records of the proceedings of the NAACP Unit and of the Executive Committee and record the same in a minute book or minute books, provided that, in NAACP Units employing paid staff, the responsibility of giving the membership required notice of meetings shall be discharged by said staff under the supervision of the Secretary.
- b. To keep a record of all NAACP Unit members and their dues, provided that wherever paid staff is employed such duties shall be discharged by said staff under the supervision of the Secretary.
- c. To give receipts for all membership fees received and to transmit such fees to the NAACP Unit Treasurer; to send promptly to the Association lists of all membership fees received; and to secure from the Treasurer and forward to the Association that portion of membership fees due to the Association.
- d. To aid, coordinate and integrate the work of the several committees and divisions of the NAACP Unit, provided that wherever an Executive Director is employed such duties shall be discharged by said Executive Director.
- e. To submit reports to the NAACP Unit and the Executive Committee at all regular meetings, or whenever required by either body, covering the status of the NAACP Unit and its activities since the date of the last report, to submit to the NAACP Unit at its annual meeting an annual report of the status and activities of the NAACP Unit, provided that, where an Executive Director is employed, such duties shall be discharged by said Executive Director. The Director shall forward a copy of all reports, when adopted by the NAACP Unit, to the Association.

- f. To keep the President and CEO of the Association informed of all events affecting the interests of minority groups in the vicinity of the NAACP Unit, and to submit to the Association, whenever required by the Association, a report on NAACP Unit activities, provided that, wherever an Executive Director is employed, such duties shall be discharged by said Executive Director.
- g. In conjunction with the President, to sign requisitions for disbursements from the NAACP Unit Treasury and to maintain a file of receipts and disbursements.
- i. The Secretary shall be an ex-officio member of all committees except the Nominating Committee and the Election Supervisory Committee.
- j. *Additional Duties for State/State-Area Conference Secretaries*. The State/State-Area Conference Secretary shall keep a record of all Conference Units and Assessments, provided that whenever paid staff is employed, such duties shall be discharged by said staff under supervision of the Secretary.
- k. *Additional Duties of College Chapter. Youth Council, High School Chapter and Junior Youth Council Secretaries.* College Chapter, Young Adult and Youth Secretaries shall:
 - (a) Submit to the Youth Unit at its Annual Meeting, an Annual Report on the status and activities of the College Chapter, and Youth Council. A copy of all reports by the Secretary, when adopted by the Youth Unit, shall be forwarded to President and CEO.
 - (b) Keep the President and CEO informed of all events affecting the interests of the Youth in the vicinity of the Youth Unit.

4. (Treasurer)

The duties of the Treasurer shall be:

- a. To receive all monies of the NAACP Unit and promptly deposit the same in the name of the NAACP Unit in a separate account or accounts in a responsibility bank or trust company. No money shall be withdrawn from any account except by check signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President.
- b. To act as chief financial officer of the NAACP Unit and chair of the Finance Committee.
- c. To make authorized disbursements upon requisition signed by the Secretary and countersigned by the President. Each requisition shall recite the amount and purpose of the payment requested. Any requisition exceeding one hundred dollars or more in the case of Branches, or twenty-five dollars or more in the case of College Chapters and Youth Councils, must be approved by the Executive Committee before a check

therefore is issued. The NAACP Unit bylaws may require that requisitions in smaller amounts be approved by the Executive Committee.

- d. To remit through the Secretary to the Association the proportion of membership fees to which the Association is entitled, as hereinafter provided, within fifteen calendar days after their receipt.
- e. To submit reports to the NAACP Unit and the Executive Committee at all regular meetings, or whenever required by either body, covering the financial condition of the NAACP Unit showing receipts and disbursements and outstanding accounts unpaid since the last report; to submit an Annual Report to the business of his/her office at the Annual Meeting of the NAACP Unit, to which shall be appended a statement signed by the President and Secretary that all funds by the NAACP Unit have been listed in the Treasurer's report. A copy of all reports by the Treasurer, when adopted by the NAACP Unit, shall be forwarded to the National Office.
- f. All NAACP Units shall require the Treasurer to be bonded at the expense of said Unit.
- g. Submit year-end financial reports to the National Office on or before March 1st.

5. (Assistant Secretary)

The duties of the Assistant Secretary shall be: To perform the duties of the Secretary in his/her absence, unavailability or disability. The Assistant Secretary may perform specific duties of the Secretary under the supervision of the Secretary.

6. (Assistant Treasurer)

The duties of the Assistant Treasurer shall be: To perform the duties of the Treasurer in his/her absence, unavailability or disability. The Assistant Treasurer may perform specific duties of the Treasurer under the supervision of the Treasurer.

7. (Executive Director)

The duties of the Executive Director shall be:

- a. To give due notice of all meetings of the Branch as provided in Section 3 of this Article.
- b. To keep a record of all Branch members and their dues as provided in Section 3 of this Article.
- c. To send promptly to the National Office lists of all memberships received and to secure from the Treasurer and forward to the National Office that portion of the membership fees belonging to the National Office as provided in Article IV.

- d. To aid, coordinate and integrate the work of the several committees and divisions of the Branch as provided in Section 3 of this Article. All the aforesaid duties listed in herein are to be preformed in cooperation with the Secretary.
- e. To manage the Branch office and paid staff; and to supervise the annual membership campaign.
- f. To interview complaints; to act in the name of the Branch on behalf of complainants with valid grievances; to investigate in the name of the Branch any reported, alleged or suspected discrimination practices in any place of community life; to represent the Branch at meetings of other organizations approved by the Executive Committee; to lend Branch support in active cooperation with such other organizations as may be approved by the Executive Committee; to discharge such other duties as may arise in the execution of the office; or as may be assigned by the Executive Committee.
- g. To submit reports of the activities of the General Membership and the Executive Committee at all regular meetings or whenever required by either body; to submit to the Branch at its annual meeting an annual report covering activities. A copy of all reports where adopted by the Branch shall be forwarded to the National Office.
- h. To keep the President and CEO of the Association informed of all events affecting the interests of African-Americans and other racial and ethnic minorities in the vicinity of the Branch.
- i. The Executive Director shall be responsible to the General Membership, to the Executive Committee; and between meetings of the General Membership and the Executive Committee to the President.

ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES OF UNITS

1. (Executive Committee)

- a. The Executive Committee of each State/State-Area Conference shall consist of all Officers of the State/State-Area Conference, all Standing Committee Chairpersons, State/State-Area Conference Youth President, State/State-Area Conference Youth Advisor, and such other persons as the approved State Conference Bylaws provide.
- b. The Executive Committee of each Branch shall consist of the President, Vice President (not to exceed three Vice Presidents) Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairman of the Standing Committees of the Branch, President of the Youth Units in the same community, the Branch Advisors in the High School Chapters, Youth and Junior Youth Councils and such other members at large not to exceed twenty-four to be elected at the regular election of the Branch, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed 45 except by written authorization of the Board of Directors. If there is no local youth group recognized by the National Office, the Branch must, upon receipt of 25 youth memberships, apply to the National Office for a Youth Charter and organize the appropriate youth group.
- c. The Executive Committee of the Prison Branch shall consist of the Prison Branch Coordinator/Program Director, Vice Presidents (not to exceed three Vice Presidents), Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairman of the Standing Committees of the Prison Branch, and such other members at large not to exceed twenty-four to be elected at the regular election of the Prison Branch, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed forty-five (45) except by written authorization of the Board of Directors.
- d. The Executive Committee of each College Chapter shall consist of the President, Vice Presidents, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairmen of the Standing Committees of the College Chapter, and such other members to be elected at the Annual Meeting of the College Chapter as the College Chapter bylaws may decide, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed eighteen (18) except by written authorization of the Board of Directors. The Faculty Advisor shall serve as an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee of the College Chapter.
- e. The Executive Committee of each Youth Council shall consist of the President, Vice Presidents, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairmen of the Standing Committees of the Youth Council, and such other members to be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Youth Council as the Youth Council bylaws may decide, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed eighteen (18) except by written authorization of the Board of

Directors. The Youth Council Advisor shall serve as an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee of the Youth Council.

- f. The Executive Committee of each High School Chapter shall consist of the President, Vice Presidents, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairmen of the Standing Committees of the High School Chapter and such other members to be elected at the Annual Meeting of the High School Chapter as the High School Chapter bylaws may decide, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed eighteen (18) except by written authorization of the Board of Directors. The High School Council Advisor shall serve as an *exofficio* member of the Executive Committee of the High School Chapter.
- g. The Executive Committee of each Junior Youth Council shall consist of the President, Vice Presidents, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairmen of the Standing Committees of the Junior Youth Council, and such other members to be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Junior Youth Council as the Junior Youth Council bylaws may decide, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed eighteen (18) except by written authorization of the Board of Directors. The Junior Youth Council Advisor shall serve as an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee of the Junior Youth Council.
- h. The Executive Committee of each Authorized Committee shall consist of the President, Vice Presidents, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and the Chairmen of the Standing Committees of the Authorized Committee, and such other members to be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Authorized Committee as the Authorized Committee bylaws may decide, provided that the total membership of the Executive Committee shall not exceed five (5) except by written authorization of the Board of Directors.

2. (Duties of the Executive Committee)

- a. The Executive Committee shall have general control of the affairs and program of the Unit, subject to the authority of the Unit and the provisions of the Constitution and approved bylaws.
- b. The Executive Committee shall render a report, containing the reports of all standing and special committees, at the regular meetings of the Unit and whenever otherwise required.
- c. At its first meeting following the election, and at any time during the term of office, the Executive Committee shall approve the Unit President's appointment of Chairpersons of the various Standing Committees as presented by the President.
- d. To create special committees as needs arise.

- e. To fill all vacancies in Unit offices and on the Executive Committee.
- f. To decide matters of Unit policy subject to endorsement by the Unit and in accordance with national policy.
- g. In the case of Branches, Executive Committees shall appoint, employ and enter into employment arrangements with employees of the Unit subject only to employment procedures and qualifications approved by the National Office.
- h. In the case of the State/State-Area Conferences, an Executive Director an/or staff person may be employed by the State/State-Area Conference where its budget warrants such employment, upon term and conditions approved by the Board of Directors. Such persons shall be selected by the Executive Committee of the Conference, subject to approval by the National Office.

3. (Quorum)

The quorum of the Executive Committee shall be determined by approved Unit bylaws, but shall not be less than one-third of the committee's total membership.

4. (Standing Committees and Special Committees of Units)

- a. Standing Committees of State/State Area Conferences. The Standing Committees of the State/State-Area Conference shall be: ACT-SO; Armed Services & Veteran Affair's; Communications, Press & Publicity; Community Coordination; Criminal Justice; Economic Development; Education; Finance; Freedom Fund; Health; Housing; Labor & Industry; Legal Redress; Membership and Life Membership; Political Action; Prison Branch; Religious Affairs; Young Adult; Youth Works; and WIN.
- b. State/State-Area Conference Standing Committee Reporting Requirement:
 - 1. State/State-Area Conference Standing Committees shall gather facts of their respective subject, disseminate the same to the Units through the State Conference office and make written reports at the following Annual Conference.
 - 2. State/State-Area Conference Standing Committees shall be appointed within thirty (30) days following the last session of each Conference, by the President. The President shall designate the Chairperson of each of the Standing Committees, and make a report at the next regular meeting of the State/State-Area Conference.
- c. Standing Committees of Branches. The Standing Committees of the Branch shall be: ACT-SO, Armed Services & Veteran Affair's; Communications, Press & Publicity; Community Coordination; Criminal Justice; Economic Development; Education; Finance; Freedom Fund; Health; Housing; Labor & Industry; Legal Redress;

Membership and Life Membership; Political Action; Prison Branch; Religious Affairs; Young Adult; Youth Works; and WIN.

- d. Standing Committees of Prison Branches. The Standing Committees of the Prison Branch shall be: ACT-SO; Armed Services & Veteran Affair's; Communications, Press & Publicity; Community Coordination; Criminal Justice; Economic Development; Education; Finance; Freedom Fund; Health; Housing; Labor & Industry; Legal Redress; Membership and Life Membership; Political Action; Prison Branch; Religious Affairs; Young Adult; Youth Works; and WIN.
- e. *Standing Committees of College Chapters*. The Standing Committees of the College Chapters shall be: Membership; Finance; Press and Publicity; Programs and Research; Education; Employment; Political Action; Juvenile Justice; and Health.
- f. *Standing Committees of Youth Councils*. The Standing Committees of the Youth Councils shall be: Membership; Finance; Press and Publicity; Political Action; Youth Employment; Education; Programs and Research; Entertainment; Juvenile Justice; and Community Coordination.
- g. Standing Committees of High School Chapters. The Standing Committees of High School Chapters shall be: Membership; Finance; Press and Publicity; Political Action; Youth Employment; Education; Programs and Research; Entertainment; Juvenile Justice; and Community Coordination.
- h. *Standing Committees of Junior Youth Councils*. The Standing Committees of the Junior Youth Council shall be: Membership; Finance; Press and Publicity; Political Action; Youth Employment; Education; Programs and Research; Entertainment; Juvenile Justice; and Community Coordination.
- i. The President, in consultation with the Committee Chair, shall appoint the members of the Standing and Special Committees, except the Nominating Committee. All committees shall consist of not less than three members.

5. (Duties of the Standing Committees)

The duties of the Standing Committees shall be:

a. <u>Afro-Academic, Cultural, Technological and Scientific Olympics (ACT-SO)</u>. The Committee on ACT-SO shall follow these rules: (1) must be properly registered annually with the National Office and follow all directives outlined by the National ACT-SO Program; (2) understand that it is a major project of the NAACP. With ACT-SO, the NAACP is providing an instrument through which African-American youth are encouraged and inspired toward excellence in academic and cultural pursuits while benefiting from the maximum support of their communities; (3) uphold its goal of ACT-SO that affords the same respect for African-American Scholastic and cultural achievement that is given to heroes; and (4) recognizing that ACT-SO conducts annual academic competitions for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) in NAACP Branches throughout the country in accordance with the published guidelines of the National Office and oversight of the National Director of ACT-SO Program.

- b. <u>Armed Services and Veterans' Affairs</u>. The Committee on Armed Services and Veterans' Affairs shall: (1) seek to establish a working relationship with those agencies in government, national, state and local, having the responsibility in the affairs of members of the various Armed Services and Veterans and to see that the programs to which they are responsible are administered fairly and justly to members of the minority community; (2) study conditions pertaining to veterans and members of the Military Service and their dependents and/or survivors in the community; (3) serve as a center of information on matters affecting the members of the Active Military, Reserves, State National Guard and Veterans; (4) maintain a repository of materials, information and forms to be used in assisting veterans and/or dependents of veterans and military personnel with their problems; (5) receive and act on all complaints relative to acts of discrimination on account of race, color, creed, or denial of benefits to which they are entitled because of discrimination; (6) prepare a quarterly report on committee activities to be submitted to the Executive Committee of the Unit and the National Director of Armed Services and Veterans Affairs.
- c. Communications, Press and Publicity. The Committee on Communications, Press and Publicity shall: (1) seek to promote media content consistent with fundamental NAACP goals which include the elimination of racial isolation and fear and the furtherance of multiracial and cultural understanding; (2) work to eliminate employment segregation and discrimination in those industries, [comprising the communications arts and sciences] (radio, telephone, television, motion pictures, newspapers, books, related computer communications, business, cable television); (3) seek to ensure Black minority ownership and control of print and electronic media – both hardware and software; (4) monitor local and national media, especially advertising performance; (5) provide the National Office with research and data on those local businesses engaged in communications arts and sciences; (6) seek to ensure that all people have a meaningful right to choose from and have access to a variety of high quality telecommunications goods and services at reasonable cost; (7) endeavor to secure publicity for the work of the Unit and the Association in the local press and on radio, television and other media; (8) attempt to interest persons in charge of local news media on conditions affecting minority groups; (9) seek to counteract derogatory and erroneous statements in local news media about Blacks and other minority groups; (10) be responsible for forwarding to THE CRISIS items covering Unit activity and important local affairs; and (11) act as far as possible as an agency for the promotion and sale of THE CRISIS. No publicity shall be released without first being approved by the President of the Unit.
- d. <u>Community Coordination</u>. The Committee on Community Coordination shall enlist the support of other community organizations on issues affecting the interests of African Americans and other communities of color.

- e. Criminal Justice. The Committee on Criminal Justice shall: (1) seek to eliminate harsh and unfair sentencing practices that are responsible for mass incarceration and racial disparities in the prison system, (2) support and seek to increase trust and public safety by advancing effective law enforcement practices, (3) fight for the restoration for the voting rights of formerly incarcerated people and the removal of barriers to employment, (4) elevate the voices of crime victim survivors in order to identify and advance systemic breakdowns existing in the criminal justice system that perpetuate crime, (5) resolve to end the war on drugs for its disproportionate collateral consequences harm communities of color, (6) seek the institution and availability of alternatives to incarceration including education, employment, mental health services, (7) eliminate zero tolerance policies implemented in our schools which are keeping kids out of the classroom and putting them on a path from the schoolhouse to the jailhouse, (8) investigate programs implemented in our local law enforcement agencies which derail from their main purpose of safety and order to conduct the work of federal agencies for which they do not have the capacity, and (9) seek budget modifications in states where incarceration receives more funding than education.
- f. <u>Economic Development</u>. The Committee on Economic Development shall implement local efforts and support national programs to preserve and expand economic empowerment among African-Americans and other communities of color by: (1) researching and establishing relationships with private and public entities; (2) supporting the work of the National Office in monitoring the progress and activity of private and public entities designated by national programs; and (3) implementing local efforts to promote the growth of business ownership; (4) increasing employment and job creation; and (5) encouraging business development and home ownership.
- g. <u>Education</u>. The Committee on Education shall: (1) seek to eliminate segregation and other discriminatory practices in public education; (2) study local educational conditions affecting minority groups; (3) investigate the public school system and school zoning; (4) familiarize itself with textbook material there from which racially derogatory; (5) seek to stimulate school attendance; (6) keep informed of school conditions and strive to correct abuses where found; (7) investigate the effects of standardized and high stakes testing practices; (8) teacher certification; (9) promote parental involvement in education; and (10) aim to be a center of popular education on the race question and on the work of the Association.
- h. <u>*Finance*</u>. The Finance Committee shall consist of the President, Treasurer, and at least one other member. It shall study the financial needs of the Unit and shall be responsible for drafting an adequate annual budget.
- i. <u>Freedom Fund</u>. The Freedom Fund Committee shall plan and conduct fund-raising activities, entertainment and other projects, for local and national purposes within the scope of the Association's program. It shall work closely with the Financial Committee.

- j. <u>*Health*</u>. The Health Committee shall: (1) work to promote, protect and maintain the health of African Americans; (2) assess the health needs of the community; (3) advocate for equal access to health education, care, treatment and research for all Americans; (4) sponsor health-related activities such as health forums, fairs and workshops highlighting issues of importance to people of color; and (5) support health initiatives of the Association.
- k. <u>*Housing*</u>. The Committee on Housing shall: (1) study housing conditions in the local community; (2) receive and seek to address complaints of discrimination; (3) oppose all restrictive practices whether public or private; and (4) disseminate information and render such other assistance which may eliminate discrimination in housing.
- <u>Labor and Industry</u>. The Labor and Industry Committee shall seek ways to improve the economic status of minority groups by: (1) working to eliminate discriminatory employment practices in industry and government, wage differentials based on race, unequal opportunities for training, promotion and unfair dismissals; (2) encouraging greater participation in the trade union movement; (3) working to end discriminatory practices in labor unions; (4) securing the enactment of state and federal fair employment practices legislation; and (5) working for improved opportunities in vocational and apprenticeship training.
- m. <u>Legal Redress</u>. The Legal Redress Committee shall: (1) investigate all cases reported to it; (2) supervise all litigation in which the Unit is interested; and (3) keep the National Office and the Branch informed on the progress of every case. It shall not give general legal advice.
- n. <u>Membership and Life Membership</u>. The Membership Committee shall: (1) work throughout the year to maintain and increase the membership of the Association; (2) be responsible for planning and organizing the annual membership campaign; (3) be responsible on a continuous basis for soliciting new members and for securing renewals; and (4) initiate all possible means to obtain Life Members and sponsor a continuing program toward this end.
- o. <u>Political Action</u>. The Political Action Committee shall: (1) seek to increase registration and voting; (2) work for the enactment of municipal, state and federal legislation designed to improve the educational, political and economic status of minority groups; (3) seek the repeal of racially discriminatory legislation; (4) work to improve the administration of justice; (5) work to secure equal enforcement of the law; and (6) keep the National Office and the Unit informed of all proposed legislation which affects minority groups. The Committee shall be nonpartisan and shall not endorse candidates for public office.
- p. <u>Prison Branch</u>. The Prison Branch Support Committee shall support the work of the Prison Branch in accordance with Article VIII, Section 6 (1-11) by (1) working closely and directly with the members of their respective Prison Branch and the Regional Prison Coordinator; (2) maintain contacts with, and report regularly to the

Regional Coordinators; (3) build, cultivate and maintain positive relationships between prison officials, Prison Branch members and members within the local Branch; and (4) solicit community organizations and business to establish a volunteer bank (teachers, writers, poets, businessmen, ministers, lawyers, policemen, judges, government officials, politicians and media personnel) to assist the Prison Branch in carrying out its programs.

- q. <u>Religious Affairs</u>. The Religious Affairs Committee shall include ministerial and lay religious leaders who are members of the Unit. It shall: (1) promote an educational program designed to give moral and ethical interpretation to the civil rights struggle; (2) interpret the work of the Association to organized religious groups of all faiths; (3) enlist the support of such organized religious groups for membership, fundraising, and the struggle for equality and full civil rights; and (4) provide resource assistance for religious education and social action activities, associated with the improvement of race relations.
- r. <u>Youth Adult</u>. The Committee on Young Adult shall consist of Branch members twenty-one (21) forty (40) years of age. It shall be the function of the Committee to: (1) support all branch activities; (2) stimulate interest through advocacy training and solicit membership of twenty-one (21) forty (40) years of age; (3) create a mentorship program (Branch to Youth Adults and Young Adults to Youth Units) to serve as a support bridge from Youth and College to Branch participation; (4) provide networking and social opportunities for young adults in the local community; and (5) encourage the participation of young adults in all activities and leadership within the Branch.
- s. <u>Youth Works</u>. The Committee on Youth Work for State/State-Area Conferences shall consist of all Youth Unit Advisors and Youth Unit Presidents in the state; and five (5) persons appointed by the State/State-Area Conference President. The Committee on Youth Work for Branches shall consist of the Youth Unit Advisors(s), and Youth Unit President(s) in the same community, and five (5) persons appointed by the Branch President. The Youth Unit Advisors and the Youth Unit Presidents shall choose the chair of the Committee. The Youth Work Committee shall develop and coordinate the programs of the Branch(es) and Youth Units.

The Branch Committee on Youth Work shall turn the names, addresses and membership dues of youth solicited by the Branch over to the appropriate National Office recognized youth group, if any, in their community. The Youth Work Committee shall monitor the youth membership in the Branch. If there is no local youth unit recognized by the National Office, the Committee shall recommend the Branch apply to the National Office for a Youth Charter and organize the appropriate youth group.

t. <u>Women in the NAACP (WIN)</u>. State/State-Area Conferences, Branches, Prison Branches of the Association may organize Women in NAACP (WIN) committees subject to the control of the Executive Committee and to such rules and regulations as the Board of Directors may enact. WIN committees shall consist of a Chairperson and/or Co-Chairperson and at least three (3) other members. WIN shall address within the framework of the NAACP, civil rights issues affecting women and children and shall carry out other civil and cultural activities to enhance membership and provide financial support to the Branch. The purpose WIN is (1) to enhance the leadership role of women; (2) to serve as an advocacy vehicle to address the social, economic, political, educational, health and welfare issues affecting women; (3) to advocate for the emotional, mental, physical and spiritual development of children and (4) to support the policies as well as the on-going mission and vision of the NAACP.

- u. All Standing Committees must have at least three (3) appointed members. They shall report in writing each month to the Executive Committee at its regular meetings.
- 6. (Distinctive Duties of Prison Branch Support Committees) (see page 48 of ByLaws for Units, NAACP January 2014)
- 7. (Distinctive Duties of College Chapter Standing Committees) (see page 49 of ByLaws for Units, NAACP January 2014)
- 8. (Distinctive Duties of Youth Council Standing Committees) (see page 52 of ByLaws for Units, NAACP January 2014)
- 9. (Tenure)

Members of the Executive Committee and of the several standing committees of Branches and Prison Branches shall hold office for two years and until their successors are elected and qualify. Members of the Executive Committee of Youth Units shall hold office of one year

10. (Removal Procedure)

- a. Non-functioning committees shall be discharged promptly by the Executive Committee.
- b. Any member of the Executive Committee, except officers or of any standing or special committee who shall be absent from three (3) consecutive meetings without notice to the Secretary or President or who shall not perform the required duties for three (3) consecutive months, or who shall be absent from any six (6) meetings with or without notice in a twelve month period shall be removed by the Executive Committee by written notification to the delinquent member and replaced in accordance with Article VIII, Section 2(e). A member of any standing or special committee may be directly removed by the chairperson for dereliction of duty. If the Executive Committee fails to act, the President, Secretary, and one member may sign the removal letter.

c. For any officers who shall be absent from three (3) consecutive meetings without notice or explanation to the Secretary or President, or who shall not perform the required duties for three (3) consecutive months, or who shall be absent from any six (6) meetings with or without notice in a twelve month period except in cases when the General Meeting and the Executive Committee meeting are held on the same day those occurrences shall be counted as one missed meeting, the National Office is to be notified by the Secretary by way of a petition signed by the Secretary, the President and one (1) other member of the Executive Committee. If the President or Secretary is in violation, then any three members of the Executive Committee shall sign the petition. The National Office shall recommend the removal of said officer by the Board of Directors at the next meeting of the Board of Directors following receipt of the petition.